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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

 

  
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Powell and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 
  Raul Saenz, Utilities Manager 
  Brian Wright, Water Utility Supervisor 
 
DATE: June 19, 2012  
 
SUBJECT: Construction Contract with Total Concept Sales, Inc. ($81,285) for the Water and 

Wastewater Facilities Voltage Surge Suppression Installation Project and 
Additional Appropriation from the Water Fund Reserves ($6,134) and Wastewater 
Fund Reserves ($8,452). 

  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that City Council: 

1. Award a contract to Total Concept Sales, Inc. in the amount of $81,285 for the Water and 
Wastewater Facilities Voltage Surge Suppression Installation Project and authorize the City 
Manager to execute said contract; 

2. Appropriate Water Fund Reserves in the amount of $6,134 and Wastewater Fund Reserves in 
the amount of $8,452 ($14,586 total) to the Water and Wastewater Facilities Voltage Surge 
Suppression Installation Project to provide funding for the recommended contract; and, 

3. Authorize the City Manager to approve additional work in an amount not-to-exceed $8,128 
(10% contingency).  

 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
Funding for the recommended contract would be provided from appropriations made by City 
Council for this project as shown in Table 1 below. 
 

TABLE 1 
BUDGET 

2011-2012 Water Pumping Supplemental Budget:           501-18-231-5101 $36,714.00  
2011-2012 Sewer Maintenance Supplemental Budget:    503-18-321-5101 $38,113.00  
Additional Appropriations from Water and Wastewater Fund Reserves $14,586.00  

TOTAL BUDGET PLUS APPROPRIATION $89,413.00  
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Estimated project costs are as shown in Table 2 below. 

 
TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED COSTS 
Budgeted plus appropriations $89,413.00 
Recommended Construction Contract with Total Concept Sales, Inc.  $81,285.00 
Recommended 10% Contingency   $8,128.00  

Total Estimated Costs $89,413.00  

Estimated Balance $0.00 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Manhattan Beach operates eight (8) potable water and ten (10) waste water facilities 
that require electrical power provided by Southern California Edison (SCE).  These facilities are 
equipped with electrical equipment that is vulnerable to damage from power surges entering 
from Edison’s electrical system.  In an effort to protect the equipment, surge suppression systems 
would be installed under the recommended contract to protect critical electrical systems from 
power surges.  The installation of the voltage suppression systems could potentially save costly 
electrical equipment and reduce the risk of damage to the City’s supervisory control and data 
acquisition (SCADA) System components. 
 
This project will involve: 

• Correctly sizing individual voltage surge suppression systems to adequately protect each 
facility based on the size and service of each facility. 

• Installing voltage suppression systems according to manufacturer specifications and all 
applicable electrical construction code. 

• Wiring and programming voltage suppression systems according to manufacturer 
specifications to provide optimum power protection to each facility. 

• Providing City with wiring diagrams for each of the installed voltage suppression 
systems, to include all new and/or modified equipment and materials. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
Bid Proposals 
On April 3, 2012, City Council approved specifications and authorized Staff to solicit bids for the 
Water and Wastewater Facilities Voltage Surge Suppression Installation Project.  On April 12, 
2012, this project was advertised for bids in accordance with the City policy.  In an effort to 
enhance competition, staff contacted and mailed Bid Packages to four known local electrical and 
motor control contractors.  Subsequently, bids were submitted by two contractors as follows: 
 

No. Name of Bidder Bid Amount 
1 Total Concept Sales, Inc.  $           81,285.00  

2 Control Maintenance and Repair, Inc.  $           83,414.96  
 
Lowest Responsive Bidder – Total Concept Sales, Inc. 
The Lowest Responsive Bidder is Total Concept Sales, Inc.  The Total Concept Sales, Inc. bid was 
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reviewed by the Public Works Department and found to be responsive.  Staff reviewed Total 
Concept Sales, Inc. contractor’s license and found it to be in order. References indicate that Total 
Concept Sales, Inc. has the knowledge and the capability to complete the work.  The project was 
discussed with a representative of the firm and he expressed confidence in his bid and a desire to 
perform the work. 
 
Additional Appropriation  
An additional appropriation in the amount of $14,586 is required to cover the recommended 
contract plus 10% contingency.   
 
Authorization of Additional Work (10% Contingency) 
While the project bid package was developed to address costs associated with most of the expected 
improvements, there is a probability of encountering unforeseen conditions.  Authorizing the City 
Manager to approve additional work in an amount not-to-exceed $8,128 (10% of the recommended 
contract amount) would expedite completion of the project. If the additional work authority is 
approved with this award, a report of any additional work would be provided to City Council at the 
end of the project. 
 
Schedule 
Construction is tentatively scheduled to begin on July 16, 2012 and includes 45 working days for 
completion. 
 
 
attachments: Contract Documents (3 sets) 
 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
 
 
 




































































